
TIS Comment Responses – Coffee Shop – Coors/Brayton 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

To: Margaret Haynes, NMDOT Assistant District 3 Traffic Engineer 

From: Chuck Huffine, PE, PTOE 

Date: March 31, 2022 

Re: 3/17/22 Comment Responses – Coffee Shop Development Traffic Impact 
Study Northeast corner of NM 45 (Coors Blvd) and Brayton Rd 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

NMDOT provided the comments below, dated March 17, 2022, concerning the Coffee Shop 
Development draft Traffic Impact Study, dated January 16, 2022. An updated Traffic Report has 
been prepared and submitted with this memo. The following presents my responses: 

General Comments: 

1) An access permit shall be obtained from the COA for Fortuna, Hanover and Brayton which
access NM 45.

Response: We understand that NMDOT will work with the City of Albuquerque to get these
directly. 

2) Synchro is not an acceptable software for signalized analysis or queueing calculations. These
will need to be resubmitted utilizing the Highway Capacity Software (HCS). HCM output via
Synchro is also not acceptable. Please provide HCS files as well. I am requesting a second draft
TIS or TIS addendum to be submitted for review.

Response: Analysis on Coors Blvd. was re-done using HCS7, based on the Highway Capacity
Manual. 

3) Include site plan within body of the report.

Response: Included as Figure 2.

4) No additional access will be allowed to this site when the future development builds out. All
access shall be obtained via Brayton and 59th Street.

Response: Understood

5) This study is only valid to the unknown build-out if the future restaurant trip generation is
equal to or less than what is shown in this TIS.

Response: Understood

6) Please provide plat identifying the share access easement through the Taco Bell property.
Summary tables with LOS for each lane approach should be inserted within the report
document.
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Response: Plat and easement info is attached to this memo. 

7) NM 45 planning documents include 4 thru lanes and bike lanes along NM 45. Further 
discussion is needed. Any right-of-way needs along this development’s frontage to NM 45 
will be required. 

Response: This issue can be discussed directly with the owner and is not discussed in the 
traffic study. Since there are no adjacent bike lane facilities on Coors Blvd., and it may be 
some time before a bike lane is added, we are not including a bike lane in our 
recommendations. 

8) At minimum, all ADA facilities along the development and at its access points must 
meet PROWAG. 

Response: Understood. 

9) Include deceleration lane warrant for a dedicated right turn at NM 45 and Brayton. It appears 
it is warranted. If so, this will be required by this development. Vacant property south of 
Brayton is public ROW. 

Response: The warrant for the northbound right turn deceleration lane will be met by this 
development. See Table 6 in the traffic report. We do note that no deceleration lane was 
required for the Dutch Brothers Coffee Shop. In addition, since no other turn lanes meet 
deceleration lengths in the study area, we request that only a lane long enough to handle 
queues be required. We proposed 100 feet. 

10) Are there any opportunities to modify signal timing within the NM 45 coordinated system, if 
so please provide recommendations. Analysis must reflect if there is or is not existing 
detection at the signals. 

Response: There is no detection on mainline Coors Blvd. Signal timings were not changes as 
a result of background growth or the proposed development. 

11) Include coordinated signal timing plans for NM 45 signalized intersections in the appendix. 

Response: Existing signal timing and coordination plans are included in Appendix D. 
 
Report Comments: 

1) Page 3 – Provide trip total in table. 

Response: Provided 

2) Page 3 – Trips were collected at a similar site to develop a trip rate for the proposed coffee 
shop. 

Response: Acknowledged.  

3) Page 5 – Acceptable LOS criteria follows the NMDOT’s State Access Management Manual 
(SAMM). NM 45 and all of its access points must meet SAMM criteria, this includes but is not 
limited to the LOS, access spacing and deceleration lanes. 

Response: Understood. 

4) Page 8 – MRCOG has a long range bikeplan which identifies NM 45 as a bike route, therefore 
those facilities should be incorporated as a part of this project. 
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Response: Discussion of the bike route is included in the revised study. However, any bike 
improvements will need to be discussed with the owner. 

5) Page 10 – Provide justification of pass by rate of 50% 

Response: Justification came from the ITE Trip Generation Handbook, 3rd edition. 

6) Page 14 – Revise per HCS analysis. Add gridlines to ease reading across the columns. 
Modifying roadway network LOS graphics in appendix is not necessary. 

Response: Gridlines were added. LOS graphics were also updated. 

7) Page 15 – SAMM requires queue plus deceleration lane length for compliance. It does not 
appear that any of the auxiliary lanes which this development will use meet SAMM today. 
Include this in your study. Optimization of storage area and priority of compliance is at 
signalized intersections. 

Response: All existing turn lanes are long enough to handle forecast queues with the 
proposed development. However, none of the turn lanes currently provide the 400-foot 
required deceleration distance. Table 6 in the traffic report shows that the proposed 
development will only contribute a small fraction of traffic to these lanes, or none at all. As 
such, the report recommends that NMDOT length these lanes and not the developer/owner. 
Note that the southbound left turn lane at Brayton cannot be widened as the northbound 
left turn lane at Hanover takes priority for the available length of median.  

8) Page 17 – Any issues with sight distance at access points at NM 45? 

Response: No issues were found at the access points to Coors Blvd. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Chuck Huffine, PE, PTOE 
President 
CLH Associates LLC 
 
 
Cc: 
Helen Strader, Broker/Owner 
Matt Grush, COA 










